

high school credits or elective high school credits. Students enrolled in such national guard programs shall be considered enrolled in the common school last attended preceding enrollment in such national guard program.

Passed the Senate June 8, 1975.

Passed the House June 7, 1975.

Approved by the Governor June 27, 1975.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State June 27, 1975.

CHAPTER 263

[Second Substitute House Bill No. 1007]

ELECTED OFFICIALS AND JUDGES—SALARIES

AN ACT Relating to state government; amending section 43.03.010, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 2, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 43.03.010; amending section 1, chapter 144, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 3, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 2.04.090; amending section 6, chapter 221, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 4, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 2.06.060; amending section 2, chapter 144, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 5, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 2.08.090; amending section 100, chapter 299, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 6, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 3.58.010; making an appropriation; declaring an emergency; and providing an effective date.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 43.03.010, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 2, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 43.03.010 are each amended to read as follows:

The annual salaries of the following named state elected officials shall be: Governor, (~~((thirty-four thousand three hundred))~~) forty-two thousand one hundred fifty dollars; lieutenant governor, (~~((ten thousand six))~~) seventeen thousand eight hundred dollars plus a sum equal to 1/260th of the difference between the annual salary of the lieutenant governor and the annual salary of the governor for each day that the lieutenant governor is called upon to perform the duties of the governor by reason of the absence from the state, removal, resignation, death or disability of the governor; secretary of state, (~~((fifteen thousand eight))~~) twenty-one thousand four hundred dollars; state treasurer, (~~((fifteen thousand eight hundred))~~) twenty-four thousand one hundred fifty dollars; state auditor, (~~((seventeen thousand four hundred))~~) twenty-four thousand nine hundred fifty dollars; attorney general, (~~((twenty-four thousand three))~~) thirty-one thousand five hundred dollars; superintendent of public instruction, (~~((twenty-three thousand seven hundred fifty))~~) thirty-one thousand five hundred dollars; commissioner of public lands, (~~((twenty-one thousand one hundred))~~) twenty-nine thousand two hundred fifty dollars; state insurance commissioner, (~~((seventeen thousand four hundred))~~) twenty-four thousand fifty dollars; members of the legislature shall receive for their service three thousand eight hundred dollars per annum; and in addition, ten cents per mile for travel to and from legislative sessions.

Sec. 2. Section 1, chapter 144, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 3, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 2.04.090 are each amended to read as follows:

Each justice of the supreme court shall receive an annual salary of ~~((thirty= four thousand eight hundred twenty= five))~~ thirty-nine thousand four hundred twelve dollars, but no salary warrant shall be issued to any judge of the supreme court until he shall have made and filed with the state treasurer an affidavit that no matter referred to him for opinion or decision has been uncompleted or undecided by him for more than six months.

Sec. 3. Section 6, chapter 221, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 4, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 2.06.060 are each amended to read as follows:

Each judge of the court shall receive an annual salary of ~~((thirty= one thousand six hundred fifty))~~ thirty-six thousand three hundred twenty-five dollars, but no salary warrant shall be issued to any judge until he shall have made and filed with the state treasurer an affidavit that no matter referred to him for opinion or decision has been uncompleted by him for more than three months.

Sec. 4. Section 2, chapter 144, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 5, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 2.08-.090 are each amended to read as follows:

Each judge of the superior court shall receive an annual salary of ~~((twenty= eight thousand five hundred))~~ thirty-four thousand two hundred fifty dollars.

Sec. 5. Section 100, chapter 299, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 6, chapter 149, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. (Initiative Measure No. 282) and RCW 3.58-.010 are each amended to read as follows:

The annual salary of each full time justice of the peace shall be ~~((twenty= three thousand two hundred and fifty))~~ twenty-nine thousand dollars: PROVIDED, That in cities having a population in excess of ~~((five))~~ four hundred thousand, the city which pays the salary may increase such salary of its municipal judges to an amount not more than the salary paid the superior court judges in the county in which the court is located: PROVIDED FURTHER, That no full time justice of the peace shall perform any civil marriage between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday: PROVIDED FURTHER, That a member of the legislature whose term of office is partly co-extensive with or extends beyond the present term of office of any of the officials whose salary is increased by virtue of the provisions of sections 1 through 5 of this act shall be eligible to be appointed or elected to any of the offices the salary of which is increased hereby but he shall not be entitled to receive such increased salary until after the expiration of his present term of office and his subsequent election or reelection to the office to which he was appointed or elected respectively during his term of office as legislator.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 6. There is hereby appropriated to the Governor—Special Appropriations the sum of \$1,030,220 or so much as may be necessary for the purpose of implementing sections 1 through 4 of this 1975 amendatory act.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 7. If any provision of this 1975 amendatory act, or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act, or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 8. This 1975 amendatory act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety, the support of the state government and its existing public institutions, and shall take effect July 1, 1975.

Passed the House June 7, 1975.

Passed the Senate June 6, 1975.

Approved by the Governor June 30, 1975.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State June 30, 1975.

CHAPTER 264

[Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2334]

CORPORATIONS

AN ACT Relating to corporations; amending and recodifying section 1, chapter 85, Laws of 1965 and RCW 23.01.226 to be recodified as RCW 23A.08.325; amending section 38, chapter 53, Laws of 1965 and RCW 23A.08.350; amending section 44, chapter 53, Laws of 1965 and RCW 23A.08.410; amending section 50, chapter 53, Laws of 1965 and RCW 23A.08.470; and amending section 16, chapter 53, Laws of 1965 and RCW 23A.08.130.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 1, chapter 85, Laws of 1965 and RCW 23.01.226 are each amended and recodified as RCW 23A.08.325 to read as follows:

Neither a domestic or foreign corporation or its registrar or transfer agent shall be liable for transferring or causing to be transferred on the books of the corporation to or pursuant to the direction of the surviving spouse of a deceased husband or wife any share or shares or other securities theretofore issued by the corporation to the deceased or surviving spouse or both of them if the corporation or its registrar or transfer agent shall be provided with the following:

(1) A copy of an agreement which shall have been entered into between the spouses pursuant to the provisions of section 2416 Code of 1881 and RCW 26.16.120 and certified by the auditor of the county in this state in whose office the same shall have been recorded;

(2) A certified copy of the death certificate of the deceased spouse;

(3) A release issued by the inheritance tax division of the tax commission of this state; and

(4) An affidavit of the surviving spouse that:

(a) The shares or other securities constituted community property of the spouses at date of death of the deceased spouse and their disposition is controlled by the community property agreement;

(b) ~~((No proceedings have been instituted or are contemplated to have admitted to probate a will of the decedent or for letters of administration upon the decedent's estate; and that))~~ No proceedings have been instituted to contest or set aside or cancel the agreement; and that

(c) The claims of creditors have been paid or provided for.

Sec. 2. Section 38, chapter 53, Laws of 1965 and RCW 23A.08.350 are each amended to read as follows:

The number of directors of a corporation shall be not less than three, except that in cases where all shares of a corporation are owned of record by fewer than three shareholders, the number of directors may be less than three but not less